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November 22, 2017 
 
 
SUBJECT: Letter of Clarification No. 3 for Request for Proposal, S72-T26355, Shared Ride 

Passenger Van Services for the Houston Airport System 
   
 TO:                 All Prospective Proposers: 
 
This Letter of Clarification (LOC) is issued for the following reasons: 
 
 Response to Vendor Questions 
 NEW EBID ATTACHMENT- Sample Shared Ride Passenger Van Concession Agreement 

 
 

1. Question: In Part V, Section 2 Submission Requirements, items 2.6 - 2.9, 
Proposers are instructed to “… include complete and detailed written 
responses to the following items. Identify each response by referencing 
section number.” Can you please clarify what items we are to respond 
to?  Also, please clarify what section number we are to reference in our 
responses? 

COH Response:  
As stated in the advertised solicitation, the proposer shall provide 
detailed responses for section 2.6-2.9. The proposer shall reference 
and complete the attachments listed under the sections. 
Attachments are provided in the solicitation, as pages 37-47, in 
addition, forms are available as separate attachments in Microsoft 
Word format in the Strategic Procurement Division EBID System. 
 
2.6 Minimum Qualifications, proposer must complete and submit 
Attachment 1-A. 
 
2.7 Service Operation Plan, proposer must complete and submit 
Attachments 1-B and 1-C. 
 
2.8 Equipment and Support Services, proposer must complete and 
submit Attachments 1-D and1-E. 
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2.9 Staffing and Transition Plan, proposer must complete and submit 
Attachments 1-F,1-G,1-H, 1-I, and 1-J.  
 
PLEASE SEE SOLICITATION INSTRUCTIONS BELOW. 
 
2.6 Minimum Qualifications Questionnaire: 
Each proposer shall include complete and detailed written responses 
to the following items.  Identify each response by referencing section 
number.  Responses to these items will be evaluated in accordance 
with the selection process. 
 
Provide responses to Attachments “1-A”. 
 
2.7 Service Operation Plan: 
Each proposer shall include complete and detailed written responses 
to the following items.  Identify each response by referencing section 
number.  Responses to these items will be evaluated in accordance 
with the selection process. 
 
Provide responses to Attachments “1-B” and “1-C”. 
 
2.8       Equipment and Support Services: 
Each proposer shall include complete and detailed written responses 
to the following items.  Identify each response by referencing section 
number.  Responses to these items will be evaluated in accordance 
with the selection process. 
 
Provide responses to Attachments “1-D” and “1-E”. 
 
2.9      Staffing and Transition Plan: 
Each proposer shall include complete and detailed written 
responses to the following items.  Identify each response by 
referencing section number.  Responses to these items will be 
evaluated in accordance with the selection process. 
 
Provide responses to Attachments “1-F”,”1-G”,”1-H”,”1-I” and “1-J”. 
 

2. Question: Can you please clarify where the holding/staging areas will be for both 
IAH and HOU? There is currently no holding lot at either airport for 
shared ride vehicles. Taxis and TNC vehicles currently have holding lots 
that offer some shade and restrooms. 

COH Response: Areas for holding lots have not been determined.  An IAH 
transportation center is being considered on Will Clayton Parkway 
east of Lee Road, but plans are not definite and no timetable has 
been established. 

3. Question: Will the airport be providing adequate and functional office space for the 
concessionaire at both IAH and HOU? 

COH Response: Administrative office space will be provided at IAH, along with 
customer service booth locations in various terminal baggage claim 
areas.  A customer service counter only is provided at HOU.  No 
plans for additional space(s) have been made.  We make no 
representation of provided spaces being functional or adequate. 
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4. Question: The current pickup points at all terminals, including HOU, are different 
than what is listed on the RFP (it shows the old pickup points). Will the 
airport be moving the pickup points back or designating new ones? 

COH Response: The pick-up points currently being utilized will be those in effect 
under a new agreement.  At the time the RFP document was being 
finalized, the existing pick-up points were being newly established. 
 

5. Question: RISK QUESTIONS: 
 
Please confirm that all required liability insurance limits can be met by any 
combination of primary and umbrella/excess insurance. 

 
COH Response: Required liability insurance limits can be met by any combination of 

primary and umbrella/excess insurance. 
6. Question: RISK QUESTIONS: 

 
Certificate of Insurance Explanation (page 99) - The standard is to provide 
Notice of Cancellation 30 days, 10 Days for Non-payment, the current 
Cancellation language found on the standard ACORD form is “Should any 
of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date 
thereof, notice will be delivered in accordance with the policy provisions”.  
Please confirm that The City will accept the industry standard.

COH Response: Not necessarily will the City accept the industry standard. The 
reason for the City not to necessarily accept the industry standard, is 
because the industry standard may not be what the City or the Policy 
or the concession agreement calls for.  Notification of Insurance 
Cancellation is to be determined within Policy provisions; not by 
what is deemed to be usual or customary. 

7. Question: Please clarify on the compensation for HAS. When it says 10% of gross 
profit, does this mean gross profit before we cover any of our cost? What 
services or facility do we get from HAS for this payment? 

COH Response Refer to Item 27 for a definition of Gross Revenue.  Refer to COH 
Response 3 above regarding facilities provided. 

8. Question: We have observed that Solution manager is not mentioned. Please clarify 
of Solution Manager is installed and if yes, which functionalities of Solution 
manager are implemented.

COH Response: Your reference to Solution Manager is not understood.  Please 
rephrase or provide more information in order for your question to 
be addressed. 

9. Question: Regarding licensing, which type of license are we supposed to be 
acquiring to provide this service. From my understanding it is the TNC 
license or I am wrong? Is there any license I need with HAS or the city. 
 

COH Response: Operating permits for each Shared Ride shuttle vehicle are required.  
Transportation Network Companies operate and are administered 
through the City of Houston Code of Ordinances.  Shared Ride 
Concessions are governed and administered by the Concession 
Agreement between the City and the Concessionaire.  Drivers’ 
license in the proper classification are required, as determined by 
the Texas Department of Public Safety. 

10. Question: Are we going to be provided with a booth or office to operate from at 
each terminal or is that at our own cost? 
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COH Response: Refer to COH Response 3 above regarding facilities provided at no 
square footage rental cost. 

11. Question: In regard to direction signs, who is the current vendor for the airports and 
what are the charges or can we get our own vendor? 
 

COH Response: Please rephrase the question.  It is not understood 
12. Question: What is the cost of driver’s badges? 

 
COH Response: Please contact the IAH and HOU badging offices for badge 

application and fingerprinting charges. 
Please refer to : ‐  http://www.houstonairports.biz/business‐badging‐
offices 

13. Question: Are we provided with vehicle stations at the airports? It mentions on the 
requirements we cannot come to the terminal unless assigned a 
passenger and once assigned we have a short-limited time to arrive to 
pick up location. Will vendor be assigned a location to keep their vehicles?
 

COH 
Response: 

No vehicle stations are assigned at this time.  Refer to COH response 
2 for more information. 

14. Question: The advertisement at the kiosks, what are the costs as we are required to 
advertise through them. Or are we allowed to bring our own advertisement 
Kiosk and can we charge others to advertise through us as well.

COH 
Response: 

Advertising is managed by a third party; rates vary with the type of 
display.  No self-provided advertising displays are permitted.  Trade 
dress for customer service counters is allowed upon approval. 

15. Question: If an individual or group at the airport ask to travel outside the service area 
or an individual or a group attempt to make reservation online for a pick 
up outside service area and we do have availability and capability, are we 
supposed to decline the service?

COH 
Response: 

The Required Service area is essentially the city limits of Houston, 
and you are expected to provide service for that area without 
exception.  The Permissible Service area is beyond the city limits, and 
you may decline service to that area.  However, if your proposal 
specifies fares to specific locations in the Permissible Service area 
you are expected and obligated to provide service for that 
reservation. 

16. Question: What is the cost of/deposit amount for fitting a transponder on an 
approved vehicle?

COH 
Response: 

At this time, we are unable to answer this question. 

 
If you have any additional questions or further clarification needed you may contact Yvette Smith at 
yvette.smith@houstontx.gov or 832-393-8765. 
 
Thank you,  
 

Yvette Smith 
Senior Procurement Specialist, CTCM 
Strategic Procurement Division 
Yvette.smith@houstontx.gov, 832-393-8765 
910 Louisiana Street, 43rd Floor 
Houston, Texas 77002  
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When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the solicitation 
documents and shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with 
the Letter(s) of Clarification. All revisions, responses, and answers incorporated into the Letter(s) 
of Clarification are collaboratively from both the Strategic Procurement Division and the applicable 
City Department(s). It is the responsibility of the bidder/respondent to ensure that it has obtained 
all such letter(s). By submitting a bid on this project, bidders/respondents shall be deemed to have 
received all Letter(s) of Clarification and to have incorporated them into this solicitation and 
resulting bid. Furthermore, it is the responsibility of each Contractor to obtain any previous Letter 
of Clarification associated with this solicitation. 
 
 

END OF LETTER OF CLARIFICATION 3 
Partnering to better serve Houston 

 


